ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE
January 31, 2008
8:05 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Bob Roses, Vice Chair
Represent ati ve John Coghi l
Representati ve Kyl e Johansen
Representati ve Craig Johnson
Represent ati ve Andrea Dol

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representative Bob Lynn, Chair
Representati ve Max G uenberg

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTI ON NO. 12
Proposing an anmendnment to the Uniform Rules of the Al aska State
Legislature relating to abstention fromvoting.

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 291
"An Act relating to requiring conpletion of a driver's education
program for provisional driver's |icensees."

- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HCR 12

SHORT TITLE: AMEND UNI FORM RULES: ABSTAI N FROM VOTI NG
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) MEYER

01/ 15/ 08 (H READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 15/ 08 (H) STA, JUD

01/ 31/ 08 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106
BILL: HB 291

SHORT TITLE: PROVI SI ONAL DRI VER S LI CENSE; | NSTRUCTI ON
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) MEYER

01/ 04/ 08 (H PREFI LE RELEASED 1/4/08

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- January 31, 2008



01/ 15/ 08 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 15/ 08 (H) STA
01/ 31/ 08 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE KEVI N MEYER

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HCR 12 as prine sponsor.

M KE PAW.OWBKI, Staff

Representati ve Kevin Meyer

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HCR 12, on
behal f of Representative Meyer, sponsor.

REPRESENTATI VE KEVI N MEYER

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 291 as sponsor.

M KE PAW.OABKI, St aff

Representative Kevin Meyer

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Ofered information and answered questions
during the hearing on HB 291, on behalf of Representative Myer,
prime sponsor.

Cl NDY CASHEN, Adm ni strator

Al aska Hi ghway Safety O fice

Department of Transportation & Public Facilities

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 291.

VH TNEY H. BREWSTER, Director

Di vision of Mtor Vehicles

Depart ment of Adm nistration

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the hearing on HB 291.

KERRY HENNI NGS

Driver Licensing

Di vision of Mtor Vehicles
Department of Adm nistration

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -2- January 31, 2008



PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions during the hearing on HB
291.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

VICE CHAIR BOB ROSES called the House State Affairs Standing

Commttee neeting to order at 8:05:41 AM Represent ati ves
Coghil'l, Johnson, Doll, and Roses were present at the call to
order. Representative Johansen arrived as the neeting was in
pr ogr ess.

HCR 12- AMEND UNI FORM RULES: ABSTAI N FROM VOTI NG

8:06: 18 AM

VI CE CHAI R ROSES announced that the first order of business was
HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO. 12, Proposing an anendnment to
the Uniform Rules of the Alaska State Legislature relating to
abstention from voting.

8:06: 20 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KEVI N MEYER, Al aska State Legislature, presented
HCR 12 as prinme sponsor. He explained the process by which a
| egi slator declares a conflict of interest and often follows
that with a request to abstain from voting, but, through another
menber's  obj ection, nmust vote the interest regar dl ess.
Furthernore, although a representative could choose to |eave the
room if the issue is big enough, a call to the House can be
made, which would require that legislator to return to the
floor. He said this process is confusing to the public, and the
proposed | egislation would offer an alternative.

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER stated that [the current nethod of
declaring conflicts and voting] has affected him personally in
the |ast couple years because of his enploynent wth
ConocoPhi |l l'i ps Al aska, Inc. He said he has declared a conflict
of interest. He said he nodeled the proposed solution, using
the nethod of the Anchorage Assenbly, on which he served in the
past . He explained that a person on the assenbly would declare
a conflict of interest, whereby a fellow assenbly nenber would
make a notion to vote on whether or not the person who decl ared
the conflict of interest had a substantial financial interest in
the matter before the assenbly.

8:09: 01 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- January 31, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE MEYER said that nmethod works better on |ocal
i ssues, because it is easier to see when a person has a

substantial financial interest on a |ocal level. He continued:
But here, if vyou're dealing with oil taxes, for
exanple, | don't have a ... substantial financial
i nt erest in ConocoPhillips Al aska, I nc. And
certainly, ... ny enploynent that | get from themis
not inpacted by the action that | take. So, in that
case, | would not have a conflict of interest.

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER noted that a potential problem with HCR 12
is that the decision of whether or not to excuse sonmeone could
becone nore politically notivated than rationally based. He
expl ai ned, for exanple, that if he were to declare a conflict of
interest, one representative may vote that he does not have a
conflict of interest, thinking that his interests side wth
hi s/her own, while another may vote that he has a conflict of
interest for the opposite reason.

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER stated that HCR 12 is not necessarily the
right solution to the issue. He noted that included in the
committee packet is a handout that shows how other states deal
with abstention from voting, and one common denom nator is the

use of "substantial financial interest into the equation.” He
stated, "I can guarantee that that's a hard thing to ascertain
or determ ne, because what may be a substantial fine interest to
you, may not be to ne, and vice versa." He noted, as it read in
t he af orenmenti oned handout, that in Col orado, a |egislator shal

consider [anmong other things]: "(b) The effect of his
participation on public confidence in the integrity of the
gener al assenbl y". Representative Myer enphasi zed the
inmportance of maintaining the public's trust. O  equa
inportance, he said, is [not to] disenfranchise voters by

disallowing their representative or senator to vote. He quoted
| egislation of the State of Kentucky, which read: "The right of

| egislators to represent their constituencies, however, is of

such mgjor inportance that legislators should be barred from
voting on matters of direct personal interest only in clear

cases and if the matter is particularly personal." He added,

"Even our own constitution ... speaks of the right to equal

opportunity under the |aw, and clearly states that all

government originates with the people and is founded upon the
will of the people.” He said allowng an Al aska legislator to
abstain from voting wuld be denying Alaskans from that

particular district the right to representation.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- January 31, 2008



8:13:42 AM

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER stated that he thinks it is inportant not
to make it so easy for a person not to vote that he/she is
tenpted to "duck a vote." He said he thinks it is possible that
the system currently in use is the best one. He noted that
there are other bills on the issue and he expressed his hope
that the House State Affairs Standing Conmmttee would consider
all the bills and create the best legislation fromthemall. He
surm sed that the reason the legislature has not dealt with this
issue since the early '80s is because it is so difficult and
conpl ex. Notwi t hstanding that, he opined that it is time to
consi der the issue once nore.

8:15:35 AM

REPRESENTATI VE DOLL thanked Representative Meyer for addressing
t he i ssue. She revealed that she had considered introducing
simlar legislation, but was warned of the conplexity of it.
She remarked that the proposed resolution is "a strong ethics
i ssue. " She nentioned an excerpt from the aforenentioned
handout, regarding Col orado, that says a senator is considered
to have personal or private interests in nmeasures if hel/she

"accepts a gift, loan, service or other economc opportunity
from soneone who would be affected by or has interest in an
enterprise that would be affected by the legislation.™
Representative Doll nentioned the reforns that have been
consi dered regarding canpaigns. She stated, "W do accept
contributions to canpaign, and that ... does, | think, add sone
i nfluence when it cones to looking at [legislation] - not that
it would change our vote one way or the other - but certainly
there is an influence ... just in the political process by
itself."

8:17: 05 AM

VICE CHAIR ROCSES, regarding Representative Doll's tying the
issue of ethics into her reference to Colorado' s |egislation,
cited another portion of that state's revised statutes, which
read:

(4) If a menber of the general assenbly elects to
disclose the interest, he shall do so as provided in
the rules of the house of representatives or the

senate, but in no case shall failure to disclose
constitute a breach of the public trust of legislative
of fice.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -5- January 31, 2008



VICE CHAIR ROSES said it would appear that the State of Col orado
does not consider that failure to disclose would be an ethics
violation that would "raise the hackles of many folks." He
cauti oned agai nst using exanples of what other states have done
wi t hout considering all they have done.

8:18: 22 AM

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER stated his understanding that it is
everyone's right to bring an ethics charge if a |egislator does
not nake a disclosure that that person thinks he/she should have
made.

VICE CHAIR ROSES replied that that is also his understanding.
8. 18: 56 AM

REPRESENTATI VE COCGHI LL asked the sponsor if he has considered
other ways to address the issue wthout actually referencing
statute.

8:19: 53 AM

M KE PAW.OABKI, Staff, Representative Kevin Myer, Al aska State
Legi sl ature, suggested, "If you're referencing specifically just
the conflict of interest, you' re perhaps closing the door on
what could be broader and real reasons for abstaining from a
vote, and we didn't want to do that. But | personally agree
with you that ... it should not be the statute, it should be
perhaps the title of the chapter.™

REPRESENTATI VE COCGHI LL responded, "That actually works both

ways: One is it could give you a lot of reasons to abstain.
Also, it could create a lot of debate on why sonebody would
accuse sonebody from not abstaining. So, it creates an

interpretation issue that [could challenge] our |egal departnent
o He said that is why it is inportant to know what the
Uni form Rul es say, because "that's what we agree between bodies
to do." Representative Coghill offered his understandi ng that
currently it is presumed that a legislator nust vote until a
unani nous vote dictates that he/she should not. He asked if the
sponsor has given thought to existing statute and how, as a
matter of protocol, the rule as it stands now could be applied
to actually acconplish the intent of the bill.

8:22:23 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- January 31, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE MEYER responded that he has given the matter sone

t hought . He characterized hinself as a |egislator who probably
tends to declare potential conflicts of interest, because he
wants to remain transparent as a |egislator. However, he said
he always knows that he wll vote anyway after declaring a
conflict of interest and requesting abstention, because another
| egislator will always object. Many tines, he said, it is the
mnority |eader who offers that objection, because he/she wants
the votes on the record. He said he thinks people would think

nore carefully about standing up to disclose a conflict and
asking to be excused from voting if they knew that they nay
actually be excused. He indicated that the best nmethod may be
to stand up to declare a conflict and then vote anyway as a
representative of the constituents.

8:24:16 AM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL pointed out that because Al aska has a
citizen legislature, open disclosure can result in conflicts

sinply because of sonmeone's profession. He offered sone
exanpl es. He said the extrenme is that no |egislator would be
able vote on the issue of the permanent fund dividend (PFD)
because each one is eligible to receive one. He said the

consideration is whether to presume a |egislator nust abstain
fromvoting unless permtted to vote, as conpared to the current
system where the legislator nmust vote unless he/she can conpel

the body wunaninously that he/she should not vote. He said he
likes to err on the side of the current system The Ethics Law
i nposed on the resolution, he indicated, would nake the |anguage
so broad that interpretation of it would becone very politica

and have unintentional consequences. He stated, "I think when
people vote for us to be down here, they presune that we're
going to engage in every issue before us, ... unless there is a

real conpelling personal reason for you to be out...
8:28:21 AM

VICE CHAIR ROSES said there is an assunption being nmade that the
i ndi vidual who declares a conflict of interest and is nmde to
vote will always vote on the side that benefits hinsel f/herself,
and he stated that that is not necessarily the case. He noted
that the intent of the commttee chair is to consider the other
simlar bills together, perhaps in a subcommttee.

8:30: 03 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- January 31, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE MEYER recol |l ected that Vice Chair Roses had been
representing the teacher's union in the past when he cane before
the Anchorage Assenbly in support of the school district's
budget . He said there were two nenbers of the assenbly who had
to declare a conflict because their own incomes would be
affected. He said that was a body of eleven that had to address
the issue, and there are 40 representatives and 20 senators
being asked to state their conflicts. Wth that many people,
there will be a lot of conflicts on various issues, he said

Representative Meyer tal ked about the financial disclosure that
is made open to the public annually. He said he tends to agree
with Representative Coghill that publicly disclosing [conflicts
of interest] are already disclosed before a vote nay be enough.

8:32:11 AM

REPRESENTATI VE DOLL said she thinks the public pays attention to
where legislators get their canpaign contributions. She not ed
that this year there would be an initiative comng regarding
cl ean el ections. She said if the initiative were to pass, it
coul d change the way the | egislature | ooks at the entire issue.

VI CE CHAIR ROSES said he does not want to discuss another bill,
but he surm sed that passage of that initiative may "make it
wor se. "

8:33: 00 AM

REPRESENTATIVE COGHILL said he thinks the committee needs to
di scuss the distinction between a conflict that should just be
noted and one that is too egregious to allow voting.

8:33: 56 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON expressed concern after having heard the
belief that a canpaign contribution can affect the way a
| egislator votes. He clarified that he tells everyone who wants
to contribute to his canpaign that he hopes they are doing so
because they Ilike his philosophy, not because they want to
i nfl uence his vote.

8: 35: 24 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN asked Representative Meyer when [his
occupation with the oil industry] began to be a an issue.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- January 31, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE MEYER said it was never an issue when he served
on the Anchorage Assenbly. It has been only in the |ast year or
two that there have been tough issues before the legislature
related to oil taxes that he has been asked by his constituents
how he handles conflicts of interest. He said it has been
during his explanation of the process that his constituents get
a confused |look on their faces. He stated that he has always
made it clear where he works and the majority of his
constituents have voted to keep him in the |egislature. He
reiterated his concern that the |egislature not make abstention
t oo easy, which could disenfranchi se constituents.

8:38: 35 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN | ooked forward to the possibility of
nore rules, nore exceptions, and politicizing. He stated that
he may be a "sinple guy from Ketchi kan," but he faces his voters
in person. He said he thinks if soneone gets a feeling that
somet hi ng needs to be disclosed, then he/she should stand up and
do it. Utimtely, he said, a legislator faces the people who

put himin office.

8:40: 42 AM

VICE CHAIR RCSES asked if there was any one wshing to testify
on HCR 12. [ No one responded, but Vice Chair Roses did not
cl ose public testinony.]

VI CE CHAlI R ROSES announced that HCR 12 was heard and hel d.

HB 291- PROVI SIONAL DRI VER S LI CENSE; | NSTRUCTI ON

8:40: 55 AM

VICE CHAI R RCSES announced that the |ast order of business was
HOUSE BILL NO 291, "An Act relating to requiring conpletion of

a driver's educat i on program for provi si onal driver's
i censees. ™

8:41:45 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KEVIN MEYER, Al aska State Legislature, presented
HB 291 as prime sponsor. He said the genesis of the bill cane
from a constituent whose daughter, who had just turned 16, was
driving and hit another vehicle. The person in the other
vehi cl e died. He said several people have asked him why the

state does not require a driver's education program for children

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -9- January 31, 2008



to conplete before getting their licenses to drive. He said he
is not sure when schools stopped requiring students to take
driver's education, but in talking to the superintendent of the
Anchorage School District, he said he discovered that it has
been sonme tine since that school district has required driver's
education as part of its high school curriculum because it was
aliability issue and because of the cost involved.

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER said five percent of people age 16 create

30 percent of [notor vehicle-related] accidents. | nsur ance
conpani es know this and raise the premuns of anyone covering a
driver of that age; however, those conpanies wll offer a

reduction in the rate if the 16-year-old has conpleted a
driver's education course. He said the cost of requiring such a
program is a concern; however, he said it doesn't take long to
recoup the noney through the reduction in insurance rates. He
said he knows a cost of $500 is a large expense to those in
| oner income areas, and those people cannot wait to recover that
anount of noney over a 12-nonth period. He also pointed out
that 30 percent of people driving don't have insurance.
However, the aforenentioned statistic related to the 16-year-old
driver is a significant public safety issue that needs to be
factored into the cost.

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER said the proposed |egislation would require
that before a young driver is able to get his/her provisiona
driver's |license, hel/she nust conplete a certified driver's
education program

8:45:53 AM

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER said these prograns are offered throughout
the state. He indicated there is a question regarding how this
would work for folks in dennallen, "because they are able to
get the provisional licenses ... because they're on the road
system " Currently, [those in dennallen] would have to go
either to Fairbanks or Anchorage to get the training. The total
time to conplete the program would be eight hours and could be
spent either all on a Saturday or split up two hours a day for
four days. Representative Meyer relayed that insurance
conpanies are interested in this program He al so acknow edged
that the cost to constituents with |ower incones is a concern.

8:48: 02 AM

REPRESENTATI VE = MEYER, in response to a question from
Representative Johnson, confirmed that a youth who does not take

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 10- January 31, 2008



the course and does not neet the requirenents of a provisiona

license would have to wait until he/she is 18 to get a license.
He indicated that [provisional |icenses] were brought about by
past legislation, and he reviewed the I|imtations of the
provi sional |icense.

8:49: 08 AM

M KE PAW.OANSKI, Staff, Representative Kevin Meyer, Alaska State
Legi slature, on behalf of Representative Meyer, prinme sponsor,
noted that the |anguage regarding provisional |icenses can be
found in AS 28. 05. 157.

8:49: 29 AM
MR. PAWOASKI, in response to questions from Representative

Johansen, said the [Division] of Mtor Vehicles has a list of
| ocations where approved driver's education courses are

avai |l abl e. He said for sone, getting to the locations may be
difficult. He indicated that a suggestion was nmade to expand
the bill to include the Departnent of Education, "because they

al so approve driver training."
8:51: 03 AM

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER, in response to Representative Johansen,
offered his understanding that those entities that offer the
driving course nust be approved by DW. He said he thinks nost
of the driving schools are private entities.

8:52: 09 AM

REPRESENTATI VE DOLL recollected that driver's education was
provided by the school when she was student, and she said she
likes that idea, because it would provide the course to al
students, no matter what their econom c background.

8:53:29 AM

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER said the state does give a lot of nobney to
the school system but it is always in need of nore. Regar di ng
cost, he said there is a liability concern. The school s’
i nsurance rates would increase, and they would have to hire new
teachers and buy cars. He told Representative Doll that he does
not know what the exact cost would be for a school district.

8:54:49 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- January 31, 2008



MR. PAW.OAMSKI related that one school district superintendent
became scared when thinking about the cost of liability.

8:55:12 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON suggested that the legislature could take
the burden of liability off the schools and put it on the person
who makes the m stake. He recognized that the schools want to
put their nmoney into No Child Left Behind in order to qualify
for federal noney. He recalled that when he took driver's
education, it was in school, considered an after-hours activity,
cost the student a fee to cover the cost of a teacher, and the
car used was donated by a |ocal auto dealer. He said he thinks
the legislature could get creative with this issue and not spend
a lot of noney to meke it happen. For exanple, he said there
woul d be teachers who want to make an extra few thousand doll ars
to teach a driver's education course. He stated that he |ikes
t he concept of the program

8:57:32 AM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHILL said he thinks the bill brings forth a
wort hy di scussion. He suggested a need to inventory what is
being offered in the major cities of Al aska. He pointed out
that many young drivers will end up in a large city, and thus
should be taught to drive in urban situations. Conversely, he
said he doesn't "want to put a hurdle over them that they just
cannot manage." He observed that the bill is really asking that

young drivers prove that they have beconme proficient after the
40 hours they have driven under supervision.

9: 00: 05 AM
CINDY CASHEN, Admnistrator, Alaska H ghway Safety Ofice

(AHSO) Departnment of Transportation & Public Facilities
(DOT&PF), told the committee that AHSO "adm nisters federal

funding to effective prograns ainmed at savings |ives and
preventing injuries on Al aska's roads." She said the proposed
bill would not qualify Al aska for new funding, but neither would

it exclude Alaska from future funding. M. Cashen reported that
the federal National H ghway Traffic Safety Admnistration
(NHTSA) supports states which enact new and inproved existing
graduated driver licensing |aws and ordi nances pertaining to the
licensing of young, novice drivers. She said NHTSA also
supports states that develop appropriate training tools and
procedures to reduce risk-taking and inprove safety decision-

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- January 31, 2008



making for those drivers, as well as develop standards for
driver's education instructors and a standardized driver's
education curricul um

M5. CASHEN related that DOT&F unveiled the Al aska Strategic
H ghway Safety plan in Septenber [2007] and thus fulfilled a new
federal requirement under the Safe, Accountable, Flexible,
Efficient Transportation Equity Act: A Legacy for Users
( SAFETEA-LU). She explained that SAFETEA-LU requires all states
to address highway safety through a conprehensive, strategic
plan. M. Cashen noted that she was one of the stakehol ders who
participated in the related neetings throughout 2007, along with
ot her stakehol ders, representatives from state and |ocal
agenci es, private businesses, and the public. She stated, "The
pl an provides a conprehensive franmework and specific goals and
objectives for reducing highway fatalities and serious injuries
on all public roads.” She said a lot of data was used in
creating the plan.

9:03:11 AM

M5. CASHEN said three groups were formed during the planning
process. She said the group that dealt with driver's education
was called the driver behavior group. Ms. Cashen reported that

Al aska, like every other state, faces a problem with the nunber
of crashes caused by young drivers. She said young drivers are
less likely to recognize and adjust for hazards on the road,
because in general they Ilack experience and the maturity
necessary for good judgment. Furthernore, they have a | ower
safety belt use rate than other segnents of the popul ation and
often drive too fast or are inpaired. She said AHSO is

responsible for collecting all the [traffic related] fatality
reports for the state, and she indicated that it is the younger
group of drivers who consistently do not wear their safety
belts. Those young drivers - ages 16-20 - are "overrepresented
in fatal and mjor injury crashes in Al aska."” In 2005, Ms.
Cashen said, approximately 5 percent of Alaskan drivers were
young drivers; however, the percentage of fatalities and major
injuries involving these young drivers was 15 percent for
fatalities and 29 percent for mmjor injuries. Furt hernore, the
proportion of fatalities and mjor injuries from crashes
invol ving young drivers has remained relatively consistent over
the past five years. The nunbers could be worse, if not for the
fact that young drivers tend to recuperate better than ol der
drivers.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 13- January 31, 2008



M5. CASHEN stated that in the Alaska Strategic H ghway Safety
plan, one of the "action itens" is the coordination of a
statewide driver's education study to review and evaluate the
quality, quantity, and accessibility of driver's education in
Al aska. Ms. Cashen said she was excited to hear the coments
made thus far during the bill hearing. She noted that AHSO
woul d be coordinating with DW.

9: 05: 21 AM

M5. CASHEN told the commttee that Texas has a unique law, in
that the state recogni zes parent-taught driver's education. She
said NHISA sponsored a study by the Texas Transportation
Institute to evaluate the parent-taught driver's education
option in Texas - to evaluate how well parents really teach
their children to drive. The criteria used: focus groups, a
statew de survey of the young drivers, and Texas driver records.
Based on the 1.4 mllion Texas driver records, the drivers
taught by parents were convicted of nore traffic offenses than
commercial or drivers trained in public school. Based on the
self-reporting of novice drivers, the incidents of crashes
involving parent-taught drivers was not greater than the
incidents of those youth trained commercially or through public

school . She said, "So, if the parents are teaching the kids,
they commt nore traffic offenses, but they also are in
worse crashes.” In concl usion, NHTSA, based on the

af orenenti oned data, decided there is evidence to suggest that
the parent-taught driver's -education program has a negative
influence on the overall safety of novice drivers in Texas -
especially in ternms of young driver crash involvenent. MVs.
Cashen stated that this information could support driver's
education through public [schools] or the DW.

9:07:45 AM
M5. CASHEN, in response to a question from Representative Roses,

explained that a study to deternmine the availability of driver's
education around the state is addressed in the Al aska Strategic

H ghway Safety plan and "is one we hope to inplenent.” She said
requiring children to have a driver's education program across
the state, whether online or behind the wheel, is "a basic
foundation." In response to a followup question from

Representati ve Roses as to what may be hol ding up the study, M.
Cashen explained that the plan has not existed long, and to
inplement the study now is a nmatter or three conditions: who
can be involved, funding, and - nore inportantly - tinme.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- January 31, 2008



Vol unteers will need to be gathered to put together a proposa
for the study, and AHSO will need to work wi th DW.

9:10:31 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN asked who will be paying for the plan
t hat AHSO has creat ed.

MS. CASHEN responded that the beauty of the plan is that because
st akehol ders from state and private entities are involved, there
is a whole new way of financing. She said AHSO is responsible
for federal transportation dollars specifically ainmed at hi ghway
safety - in particular, driver behavior, which is encouraged
t hrough awareness and enforcenent. Ms. Cashen said when AHSO
creates a highway safety plan each year, it puts aside noney for
driver's education. She indicated that although [the prograni
is not in schools, AHSO continues to work with school s.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN said it sounds as though the noney to be
used is federal, but regardless, the issue should be addressed
by the conmittee.

9:12: 42 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON noted that M. Cashen had previously
stated that HB 291 would not reduce or increase the noney com ng
from the federal governnent. He asked if there is any way in
which the proposed legislation could be nodified so that the
state could get federal noney.

M5. CASHEN answered that she is not aware of any neans by which
to do so.

9:13: 20 AM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL acknowl edged Ms. Cashen's work and
passion for the subject. He said he is not interested in
mandati ng one agency to take care of this issue, because there
are a |lot of people involved with public safety. He spoke of
the destructive nature of [the 16-20] age group coupled with its
sense of imortality. He said he would |ike to know what the

tineline for the aforenentioned survey would be, Dbecause
whatever the plan calls for, the survey nust precede that.
Representative Coghill tal ked about the idea of contracting with
soneone outside of DW to conduct the practice test. He asked,
"Have you contenplated what a departnment might approve under
this | aw?"

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 15- January 31, 2008



9:15: 37 AM

M5. CASHEN responded that it would probably be the Departnent of
Adm ni stration and possibly be the Departnment of Education that
woul d certify "these prograns.” It would not be DOT&PF

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL commented that [AHSO would certainly
want to have input. He reiterated his question about the
tinmeline for the survey.

9:16:10 AM
M5. CASHEN said the Alaska Strategic H ghway Safety plan is
brand new, but will have to be updated at |east annually. She
conti nued:

So, our driver behavior group was very careful,
because we recognize that it takes a lot of tine to
set up a study that's done correctly. Li ke you said,

we want to nmake sure all the stakeholders have a
chance to participate in this. Because it can becone
controversi al . And a lot of us are persona
st akehol ders, as well as through our jobs. So, what

we did was we canme up with a tineline that gave us
through May to set up an RFP [request for proposal s]
to hire an agency to conduct the study. And then |
believe it was late fall - Septenber, October ... -
when ny office has to cone out with a highway safety
plan to see where the ... consulting agency would be
on the study - what they would have gathered by then -
and incorporate that into our plan. And that would
allow us to begin setting aside and fornmulating a nore
specific driver's education plan.

9:17: 30 AM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL recognized that Ms. Cashen is not in the
position to really offer him the answer he is |ooking for, and
he suggested that the conmittee hear from "a departnent person
who m ght contenplate the actual verbiage and how they m ght put
that plan together." He added, "Her plan is obviously not going
to work in the tineline that the sponsor has in mnd."

VICE CHAIR ROSES remarked that once the bill is in commttee,
the commttee controls the tinmeline.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 16- January 31, 2008



9:18: 01 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN asked how nmany provisional |icensees
have participated in the aforenentioned course for the insurance
benefits.

M5. CASHEN replied that the answer to that has alluded her
of fice, even though they are trying to pin down that
i nformati on. Because there is no statute that requires a
statewi de driver's education program there are "little pockets
of prograns,” and the nunbers of participants are unknown. She
reported that there is a program in Kenai that she had not even
heard of until its managers heard about AHSO and contacted her.

9:19:14 AMD:19:14 AM

WH TNEY H. BREWSTER, Director, D vision of Mtor Vehicles,
Department of Admi nistration, stated that she agrees with HB 291
phil osophically, but has some of the same concerns that have
been raised by the commttee. Regar di ng DMW- approved driving
schools, she referred to 2 AAC 91.010, which has information
pertaining to the requirenents in an application for someone who
wants to start a driving school. She said "the followng
regul ati ons” address instructors and how to go about inproving
t hose school s. She noted that currently there are 15 schools
statewide, in Anchorage, Fairbanks, North Pole, Juneau, Kenai,
Ket chi kan, and Pal ner. She said the division's concern is how
to give those folks who do not have driving schools in their
comunities the opportunity to have access to such schools.
Anot her concern is the cost of the courses.

9:21:10 AM

KERRY HENNI NGS, Driver Licensing, D vision of Mtor Vehicles,
Department of Administration, noted that the other "piece" that
was approved by DW is defensive driving courses. Those are
ei ght - hour classroom courses, five of which are taken over the
| nt er net .

9:21:40 AM
VICE CHAIR ROSES asked if either Ms. Brewster or M. Henning
know how many young adults are applying for provisional |icenses

who have actually taken a driver's education course.

M5. HENNI NG responded that DW does not track that information.
She said, "A parent certifies that their young person has

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- January 31, 2008



conpleted the 40 hours, with 10 hours of it being in increnent

weat her . " In response to a followup question from Vice Chair
Roses, she said it would be possible to add another question on
the application to assess that infornmation. She added, "It

woul d al so be self-certification."

VICE CHAIR ROSES said he understands that, but opined that at
| east that woul d be better than no information at all.

M5. HENNING said that could be done at the request of the
| egislature. She said she would al so research other avenues for
obtaining that information w thout putting that query on the
application, and she would supply her answer to the comittee
In response to Vice Chair Roses, she said she would ensure that
Ms. Cashen receives the information, as well.

9:23: 01 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN suggested that DW could collect the
information from the 15 driver education facilities, rather than
aski ng the youth.

9:23: 34 AM

M5. HENNI NG confirnmed that was the alternative neans to gather
the information that she had been consi deri ng.

9:23: 47 AM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked if there has been any proof as to
the effectiveness of the aforenentioned 8-hour driving course
that is available on the Internet.

M5. HENNI NG answered no. She said the course is normally taken
by those who are trying to reduce the nunber of driving
violation points from their licenses in order to avoid having
their |icenses suspended. Seniors take courses for a reduction
in insurance, which is described under Title 21. The behind the
wheel driving school gives the sane eight-hour defensive driving
course as part of its program

REPRESENTATI VE COGHILL said using "that particular course" may
be a better solution than what is suggested in the bill. He
asked what the actual process of operation is for these courses.

9:25:21 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- January 31, 2008



M5. HENNI NG replied that defensive driving courses are approved
by DW, there are at |east 20 classroom courses and five online
courses, and the cost for the course is $35-$50.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL stated, "I think adding that to a
provisional Ilicense my very well be a nove in the right
di rection. It may not get exactly where the sponsor wants to
go." He noted that his son took the course to |ower the points

on his |icense. He said he knows the inpact it had on his son
because "he was forced to deal with things that he had not
previously dealt with."

9:26:48 AM

VI CE CHAI R ROSES cl osed public testinony.

9:27.:13 AM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL said he may contenplate an anendnent to
HB 291.

[ HB 291 was heard and hel d.]
ADJ OURNNMENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

State Affairs Standing Committee neeting was adjourned at
9:27.:57 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- January 31, 2008



